
[PROTECT] 
 

 
 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

 

SEND Written Statement of Action - 
Cross Party Scrutiny Review Group  
13 December 2022 

 
Time 
 

6.00 pm Public Meeting? YES Type of meeting Scrutiny 
Reviews 

Venue 
 

Committee Room 2 - 3rd Floor - Civic Centre 

Membership 
 
Councillor Adam Collinge (Vice Chair)  
Councillor Dr Michael Hardacre  
Councillor Stephanie Haynes  
Councillor Louise Miles  
Councillor Rita Potter (Chair)  
 
 
 
Information  
 
If you have any queries about this meeting, please contact the Scrutiny Team: 

Contact Earl Piggott-Smith  
Tel/Email 01902 551251 / earl.piggott-smith@wolverhampton.gov.uk 

 
 
 

mailto:earl.piggott-smith@wolverhampton.gov.uk


 [PROTECT] 
 
 

 
 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Agenda 
 
PART 1 – Items open to all attendees 
 
Item No. Title 
  
1 Apologies for Absence  
  
2 Declarations of Interest  
  
3 Notes of the Previous Meeting (27.9.22) (Pages 1 - 4) 
  
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
  
4 Culture of Inclusion Update Report November 2022 - presentation (Pages 5 - 

12) 
 [Brenda Wile,Deputy Director of Education, to present report] 

  
  

5 Culture of Inclusion Highlight Report November 2022 (Pages 13 - 20) 
 [Brenda Wile,Deputy Director of Education, to present report] 

  
  

6 Written Statement of Action Update presentation - November 2022 (Pages 21 
- 36) 

 [Brenda Wile,Deputy Director of Education, to present report] 
  
  

7 Wolverhampton  Adviser Monitoring Review (Pages 37 - 46) 
 [Brenda Wile,Deputy Director of Education, to present report] 

  
  

INFORMATION 
  
8 Guidance - Area SEND inspections: framework and handbook (Pages 47 - 94) 
 Please use this link to read the guidance published 29 November 2022. A copy has 

also been attached for information. 
  

https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gov.uk%2Fgovernment%2Fpublications%2Farea-send-framework-and-handbook%2Farea-send-inspections-framework-and-handbook&data=05%7C01%7CEarl.Piggott-Smith%40wolverhampton.gov.uk%7Ccebf84b8909c41a10e9608dad6c97639%7C07ebc6c370744387a625b9d918ba4a97%7C0%7C0%7C638058457994182323%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=b0pwxWB73Yztoy%2FxqiRIOOKB6S%2BmEDiWJeNsdyz6kV8%3D&reserved=0


[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 
 

 
 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

 

 

SEND Written Statement 
of Action - Cross Party 
Scrutiny Review Group 
Minutes - 27 September 2022 

 
Attendance 

 
Members of the SEND Written Statement of Action - Cross Party Scrutiny Review Group 

 
Councillor Adam Collinge  
Councillor Dr Michael Hardacre  
Councillor Stephanie Haynes  
Councillor Louise Miles  
Councillor Rita Potter  
 
Officers 
Mr Martin Stevens DL (Senior Governance Manager) 
Brenda Wile (Deputy Director of Education) 
Helen Blakewell (Head of Service Inclusion and Empowerment) 
Julia Cleary (Scrutiny and Systems Manager) 
Laura Noonan (Electoral Services Manager) 

 

 
Item No. Title 

 
1 Apologies for Absence 

There were no apologies.  
 

2 Declarations of Interest 
Cllr Adam Collinge declared an interest as a Governor of Aldersley High School.   
 

3 Purpose of Meeting 
The Chair outlined the agenda for the meeting.   
 

4 Terms of Reference including Membership of Group 
The Terms of Reference were discussed.  A Member recommended that people 
should be invited to attend meetings when appropriate to give evidence.  
  
Resolved: That it be recommended to the Strong Families, Children and Young 
People Scrutiny Panel that there be one extra Labour Group Member appointed to 
the SEND Written Statement of Action – Cross Party Scrutiny Review Group.   
 
Resolved: That it be recommended to the Strong Families, Children and Young 
People Scrutiny Panel that they ask their Co-opted Members if they wish to be Co-
opted onto the Group (Up to 2 Co-opted Members permitted) 
 
 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 
 
 

 
 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

5 Ofsted outcome letter following SEND Inspection 
The Deputy Director remarked that Ofsted had found six areas for improvement 
which were described in their letter.  She outlined the six areas.  There was an action 
plan which incorporated these areas and additionally other areas which Ofsted did 
not reference.     
  
A Member of the Group suggested that sharing of best practice amongst academy 
schools should be done more.   
  
 

6 Written Statement of Action 
The role of the SEND Partnership Board was discussed.  A Member congratulated 
the Deputy Director of Education and the team for bringing partners together on the 
SEND Partnership Board.  
  
The Deputy Director commented that the vast majority of areas had a Written 
Statement of Action.  It brought people together and raised the priority. 
  
There was discussion regarding funding for Schools and how staff could access 
training on SEND.  A Member commented that the Governors of Schools needed to 
ensure that staff received training and allocated funding when required.     
  
A Member commented they would be interested in some comparative work on 
Written Statement of Actions (WSOA) with other authorities.  This would help to 
determine best practice in responding to the WSOA. 
  
It was believed In July there were only 6 EHCP’s Assessments that had exceeded 
the 30-week deadline.   In August there was only one.  The Action Plans beneath the 
WSOA included the Wolves at Work information requested from Full Council.   
  
The Head of Service Inclusion and Empowerment stated that the WSOA had been 
approved by Ofsted in it’s first version to them, this was not the case with many other 
authorities. 
  
 

7 Monitoring Visits 
The Deputy Director of Education confirmed that the next monitoring visit would take 
place in November 2022.  She expected there to be another monitoring visit in March 
2023 and a further one in July or September 2023. The conclusion of the monitoring 
visit in June 2022 had been that Wolverhampton had demonstrated they had put in 
place the effective strategic leadership, partnership working and co-production to 
support the Written Statement of Action.   
  
The Deputy Director of Education remarked that Ofsted had fed back the key 
question to ask was “What was different now.”  This is what they would be focusing 
on for the November visit, providing feedback and case studies from stakeholders so 
Ofsted had assurance.   
  
There was a discussion about whether the IT issues and the restructure would be 
completed by the November visit.  Officers responded that they hoped the IT issues 
would be much improved but some of the recruitment might go on beyond November 
due to some people having to serve three months’ notice. 

Page 2



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 
 
 

 
 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

  
The Deputy Director of Education stated she could bring another Highlights report in 
December to the Review Group.   
  
A Member stated he would be interested to read the SEND Board Minutes.  The 
Deputy Director of Education responded she would make them publicly available.   
 
 

8 Highlight reports - September 2022 
The Head of Service Inclusion and Empowerment went through the key points in the 
Highlights Report – September 2022.   
  
The deadline had been extended for certain actions as the original plan had been too 
ambitious.  The current published report was marked at risk because some of the 
programmes had not been completed.  She detailed the areas as per the report, 
which had not yet been completed.  She also went through the risks identified as per 
the report.  At the time of the published report the overall improvement programme 
was at risk but as it was now on track.   
  
A Member asked if the new IT system was in place.  The Head of Service Inclusion 
and Empowerment responded that she hoped it would be fully in place by March.  
Training was taking place over the coming months.  There was an interim solution in 
place.      
  
The Deputy Director of Education highlighted commissioning as the biggest area of 
concern. The restructure was not yet settled with the SEND Commissioning Team.  
The Head of Service Inclusion and Empowerment added that EHCP’s were still an 
area of risk.  The Capita One Project was also a risk.  Overall though the situation 
was positive and they were on track.  
 
 

9 Preparation for Adulthood update 
The Deputy Director of Education gave an update on preparation for Adulthood.  
Positively, every 14-year-old with an Education, Care and Heath Plan now had a 
pathway plan completed at 14 with a connection advisor who was an expert in SEND 
and the opportunities available.  Two new SEND advisors were also being recruited.  
In addition Connections had appointed two new SEND advisors.  An event was 
taking place in December for which all SEND children and their parents were being 
invited.   
  
Members paid tribute to Julia Cleary, the Scrutiny and Systems Manager who was 
leaving the Council at the end of the month.   
  
The Chair thanked everyone for their contributions to the meeting.   
  
  

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



City priorities 1 Children and young people get the best possible start in life

wolverhampton.gov.uk

Culture of Inclusion Project

Helen Bakewell
Head of SEND and Inclusion

Presenter:

P
age 5

A
genda Item

 4



Project Aims

• We will ensure that the experience of CYP and their families, of any 
SEND or inclusion pathway, will be consistently good or even better.

• We will work together across all services, recognising the importance 
of person-centred planning, while enabling full participation in 
decisions.

• We will ensure that children young people and their families are 
provided with accurate, unbiased information and support to achieve 
the best possible educational and other outcomes.

• We will support CYP to prepare effectively for adulthood.
• This project will ensure the council has robust systems in place to 

respond to demand across SEND services, therefore supporting the 
SEND partnership, ensuring best value for money and protecting the 
Council’s interests. informed strategic decisions

wolverhampton.gov.uk

P
age 6



Workstreams

A. Collaborative Working and Effective Services
Improved knowledge and understanding of SEND practice across all teams and effective systems, working 
together in a seamless approach which holds the journey of the child, young person, and family at the centre. 

B. Early Identification and Support for SEND and Inclusion 
A strong school improvement agenda focusing on confidence and capacity ensuring most children’s needs can 
be met in local mainstream schools.  

C. Effective Assessment and Review Systems
A large scale strategic and pre-emptive ‘assess, plan do review’ approach to children and young people with 
SEND using data to plan journeys and outcomes looking at SEN support to EHC

D. Local Offer and Communication
Consistent and clear sharing of information, including regarding support systems and the local offer.. 

E. Transitions and Preparing for Adulthood
Preparation for adulthood from the earliest years is embedded with effective planning and support available for 
robust transition at all stages.

wolverhampton.gov.uk

P
age 7



Key achievements

• Graduated Approach Guidance document launched with schools and 
services. 

• Emotionally Based School Non-Attendance (EBSNA) pathway, Costed 
Provision Map and ‘My SEN Support Plan’ launched

• SENCo Induction programme launched following successful pilot
• SENCo ‘Microsoft Teams’ area made available for networking and 

information sharing. 
• Annual review pathway process has been shared with professionals 

and schools, with training provided. 
• A digital EHCP Audit tool ‘Invision’ has been procured to assist quality 

assurance of EHCPs.
• SEND Joint Commission Strategy has been published 
• A joint baseline assessment of current commissioned SEND services 

has been undertaken to identify opportunities for joint commissioning.

wolverhampton.gov.uk

P
age 8



Key achievements

• Provision Quality Assurance standards have been re-drafted and QA 
meetings taking place with providers

• HY5! Youth forum has been established and has 13 members all with 
various SEND needs. 

• HY5! Inspiring Change training has began roll out
• A Universal Transfer Form has been shared with Secondary Heads 

and disseminated through schools. 
• Funding has been agreed for 2 SEND EET workers. 
• An outline for the Transitions Pathway and Protocol has been 

developed.
• PfA pathway for EHCP outcomes has been drafted and is due to be 

shared with professionals.
• An annual review template (EHCP) has been developed for health 

professionals to support and improve contributions to annual and 
transition reviews of EHCP. wolverhampton.gov.uk

P
age 9



Key achievements

• A Universal Transfer Form has been shared with Secondary Heads 
and disseminated through schools. 

• An outline for the Transitions Pathway and Protocol has been 
developed.

• Local Offer content has been mapped and requirements for 
replacement website have been developed in co-production with 
services and parents.

• Local Offer & Communication Officer has been appointed to drive 
forward the refresh and migration of the Local Offer.

•  A SEND Newsletter has been developed and is published regularly.

wolverhampton.gov.uk

P
age 10



Key future activity

• Training plan for SEND Champions in social care to be developed
• Guidance for SENCOs on categorising need for census returns and to 

support for early identification of language needs will be prepared
• A dedicated SEND QA Advanced Practitioner to be recruited to 

develop a QA framework and schedule of audit activity across the 
SEND Partnership.

• Developments to Capita One System to be carried out to support the 
EHC Assessment and Review Pathway.

• Procurement of Capita SEND portal to be undertaken followed by a 
review to establish how the portal will be used.

• Parent carer and young people engagement to be undertaken to co-
produce process/template to capture views within annual review 
process.

wolverhampton.gov.uk

P
age 11



Key future activity

• Timeless of EHCP/receipt of health advice for needs assessment with 
the 6 weeks will be reported monthly and inputted into the SEND data 
dashboard 

• Joint Commissioning tracker audit to be undertaken.
• PfA Audit to be completed following determination of best approach to 

engage with YP to complete relevant section.
• Careers Fair to be hosted which will support all our young people with 

an EHCP from Year 9 upwards.
• Launch co-produced Local Offer website

wolverhampton.gov.uk

P
age 12



Report produced from Verto on 18/11/22 at 22:02 Page 1 of 1

Highlight Report

Culture of Inclusion

Overall Summary

Report Period 18/11/22

Project Code PR000681

Project Name Culture of Inclusion

Report Author Nicola Harris

Gateway Stage Delivery (RIBA Stage 5) Planned End Date 31/08/2023

Overall Project Status On Target Previous Project Status On Target

Report Summary
The project continues to progress well, interim commissioning support has been bought in to support
delivery of the projects objectives. Initial Feedback from the WSoA monitoring meeting in November 2022,
which CoI delivers LA actions, was positive.

Issues have been identified and escalated following the impact Capita developments have had on achieving
the statutory 20 week timeline for the production of EHCPs.

Help or Support Required
No support required.

Key achievements this period Key Achievements this Reporting Period (24.10.22 to 20.11.22)

A. Collaborative Working and Effective Services

 Further meetings have been held with providers to add provision to draft directory following
quality assurance.

 Short Breaks project workstreams have been realigned to expediate delivery.
B. Early Identification and Support for SEND and Inclusion

 Categories of Need revised definitions have been developed to assist SENCOs with completion of
the school census.

 Feedback from the SENCO Network has shown that roll out of the Graduated Response and
associated documents is taking place in settings.

 Engagement activity s planned with schools to scope use of inclusion funding.
C. Effective Assessment and Review Systems

 Some development work has been undertaken on Capita One to assist process.

 Idox have provided extension to migrate data from the EHCP Hun and activity is on track.
D. Local Offer and Communication

 Further sessions held with parent carers to develop requirements.

 Timeline for delivery agreed with SRO.

 Design have been engaged to co-produce logo and branding with parent carers and young people.
E. Transitions and Preparing for Adulthood

 Meetings of T&F groups x2 and steering group have taken place

 Text content for Transitions content page is being finalised which will then be passed to Chris
Nicholls to develop a mock-up of the page for further discussion with the group. The group agreed
that this page will sit on the council’s website for universal transitions and targeted & specialist
transitions will sit on/link to the local offer page.

Key activities for the next period Next Steps (21.11.22 to 22.01.23)

A. Collaborative Working and Effective Services

 Joint Commissioning tracker audit to be undertaken.

 Meeting to be held with Short Breaks Workstream Leads on 21 November to baseline realignedPage 13

Agenda Item 5



Report produced from Verto on 18/11/22 at 22:02 Page 1 of 1

plan and agree amended ToR.

 Short Breaks requirement mapping workshop to be held with brokerage and payments.
B. Early Identification and Support for SEND and Inclusion

 Development of parent guide to the Graduated Response document.

 Process for allocation of inclusion funding to be co-produced with parent carers, young people and
schools.

 SEND Inclusion and Support Officers to hold sessions with SENCOs to assist completion of schools
census.

 Medical needs in schools FAQ to be produced.
C. Effective Assessment and Review Systems

 Developments to Capita One to be undertaken to assist revised EHC Assessment and Review
Pathway.

 Review of how the Capita SEND portal will be used.

 Remaining data, delayed due to Idox issues, to be transferred.

 A dedicated QA Officer, within Strategy and Policy Team, to be appointed to finalise of the QA
Framework.

 Parent carer and young people engagement to be undertaken to co-produce process/template to
capture views within annual review process.

 Carry out quality assurance/dip sample of EHCPs during December 2022.
D. Local Offer and Communications

 Local Offer and Communications Officer to commence in post.

 Align development of leisure offer to work being undertaken on YO! Wolverhampton to widen
offer available on site.

 Work to be undertaken with Design Team, young people and parent carers to develop Local Offer
Branding.

E. Transitions and Preparing for Adulthood

 PfA audit to be undertaken with young people and DSCO.

 PfA careers fair to take place on 2 December 2022 at Wolverhampton Racecourse with 400 places
booked from 23 schools across the city. A large number of exhibitors have also signed up for the
event.

Status Summary
Current
Period

Last Period Status Explanation

Tasks & Milestones Status On Target On Target All key tasks and milestones within the project plan have been reviewed.

Costs Status On Target On Target
All costs of the project are being managed through associated service
area budgets.

Risks Status On Target On Target All risks have been reviewed

Issues Status At Risk On Target

All issues have been reviewed. Delays caused to the EHC Assessment and
Review pathway due to dependencies on developments to the Capita
One System has escalated further as an issue.

Dependencies Status On Target On Target Dependencies have been reviewed and updates provided.

Financial Benefits Status On Target On Target Cashable benefits remain unchanged.

Non-Financial Benefits Status On Target On Target Non-cashable benefits remain unchanged.

Tasks & Milestones

2022 2023

Task / Milestone Name Start Date End Date % Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

WSA - Early discussion with
parent/carer & CYP
representatives built into
commissioning processes
(including community
consultation).

01/07/21 15/07/22 100

WSB - Development of SEND Risk
Assessment Process

03/05/21 22/07/22 100

WSA - Implementation of revised 02/09/20 22/07/22 100 Page 14



Report produced from Verto on 18/11/22 at 22:02 Page 1 of 1

High Needs Funding Matrix in
place

WSB - Embedding and creating a
long term sustainable model of
whole School SEND Reviews

06/09/21 22/07/22 100

WSB - Whole family approach is
embedded into graduated
approach

22/07/22 100



WSC - Recovery plan for backlog
of amendments

11/01/21 26/08/22 100

WSB - Develop costed Provision
Mapping as core tool for all
mainstream settings

06/09/21 26/08/22 100

WSB - Develop a clear emotionally
based school non attendance
pathway

06/09/21 26/08/22 100

WSB - Produce standardised SEN
support plan and develop training
and support offer for schools
related to this.

06/09/21 26/08/22 100

WSC - Deliver Backlog Recovery
Plan for EHC Needs Assessments

31/08/22 100


WSB - Develop and share
Vulnerability Matrix

01/09/20 30/09/22 100

WSB - Develop Guidance for use
of Individual Vulnerability Index

01/11/21 30/09/22 100

WSB - Publication of renewed
graduated approach

30/09/22 100


WSC - Revised Annual Review
Pathway leading to improved
performance and feedback

30/09/22 100



WSD - WIASS Advisory Board and
HY5 to develop and deliver 'HY5!
Inspiring Change Training' to
provide insight for professionals
around their experiences

06/09/21 28/10/22 100

WSB - Provide FAQ document to
aid schools to implement and
deliver the Medical Needs Policy
for inclusion in Graduated
Response

01/02/22 16/12/22 50

WSC - Revised training
opportunities for all Education,
Health and Care colleagues
including online e-learning
modules, to include what quality
and legally compliant report
writing to inform plans actually
looks like.

01/09/21 16/12/22 40

WSE - Create plans to develop
opportunities for SEND young
people alongside Wolves at Work

11/04/22 23/12/22 25

WSC - Implementation of
evaluation process to assess
parent carers and young person
satisfaction

03/05/21 23/12/22 5

WSC - Transparent, equitable and
robust decision-making process
mapped out across all services to
ensure streamlining for families

01/06/21 27/01/23 60

WSA - Create Placement
Sufficiency and planning
framework to safeguard all
vulnerable children and young
people in and out of city

03/05/21 27/01/23 60

WSC - Create and deliver
improvement plan for data and
reporting of EHCP Data

01/02/21 27/01/23 70

WSC - Procurement of preferred
IT solution to enable collaborative
electronic EHC plan process.

01/04/21 27/01/23 50

Page 15



Report produced from Verto on 18/11/22 at 22:02 Page 1 of 1

WSB - Develop clear definitions
for categories of need to assist
SENCOs with completion of the
school census

11/07/22 27/01/23 90

WSC - Develop Revised EHC
Assessment Pathway leading to
improved performance and
feedback

27/01/23 85



WSA - Implement
recommendations of the Short
Break review

01/09/20 24/03/23 45

WSA - Robust contract
management and quality of
assurance of OOC provision in
place (also ensuring health
provision is quality assured and
meeting child's needs)

01/06/21 24/03/23 80

WSB - Implement Inclusion
Funding to support schools to
meet needs

05/07/21 24/03/23 30

WSC - Develop process to deliver
service improvement from lessons
learnt

02/08/21 24/03/23 25

WSE - Draft Transitions Protocol
to be developed

01/03/22 31/03/23 75

WSF - Redevelop Local Offer 31/03/23 45 
WSC - Revised EHC plan co-
produced, with advice providers,
CYP and parent carers, and
implemented.

01/09/21 28/04/23 85

Revised EHCP Assessment
pathway developed.

01/09/21 23/06/23 10

WSE - Embed preparation for
adulthood from the earliest years
with effective planning and
support available for robust
transition at all stages.

29/11/21 29/03/24 30

Costs

Spend to Date (£) Forecast Spend (£) Total Project or Programme Budget (£)

£0 £200,000 £200,000

Risks

ID 00011

Risk Description It is possible that due to lack of communication stakeholders feel frustrated at perceived lack of
development

Impact Description Negative opinion of the Council and potential reputational damage

Target Date for Resolution 16/12/2022

Likelihood & Impact 2 Risk Status Open

Mitigating Action Develop communication plan and ensue that relevant information is disseminated to all relevant
stakeholders.
Review communication channels.
Consider development of a partnership wide communication group.
Produce SEND Newsletter on delivery.com to be distributed to stakeholders. Consider if the Local Offer and
Communications Officer can take this role.
Look at use of video communications to be shared with parents, following commencement of Local Offer
and Communications Officer.

Risk Owner Helen Bakewell

ID 00016

Risk Description Without engagement from all stakeholders the PfA Protocol may not be fully co-produced
Page 16



Report produced from Verto on 18/11/22 at 22:02 Page 1 of 1

Impact Description The PfA protocol will not be co-produced and may omit relevant information without engagement from all
stakeholders.

Target Date for Resolution 16/12/2022

Likelihood & Impact 3 Risk Status Open

Mitigating Action Ensure HY5! are involved in the process and arrange workshops/attendance at HY5! group meetings if they
are not able to join the workstream group to ensure young people feedback is incorporated into
development of PfA protocol.

Risk Owner Sarah Reynolds

Issues

ID 00012

Issue Description The ongoing restructure and resulting lack of capacity within the SEND Commissioning Team is leading to
delays in the delivery of the project plan. This includes the loss of the current lead for workstream A.

Mitigating Action Interim support required until posts can be permanently recruited to.

Impact Description The SEND Commissioning team current only has 1.5 of 5 posts in place due to recruitment being prevented
due to outcome of the Commissioning Restructure which began in October 2019.

Impact Score 2 Issue Status Open

Absolute Resolution Date 27/01/2023

Issue Owner Andrew Wolverson

ID 00013

Issue Description Version updates to Capita One and dependencies on ICMS Project have to delays in statutory timeframes for
EHCPs requiring software solutions

Mitigating Action Monitor expected time for completion of version updates and keep links open with ICMS

Impact Description Delays to development of the Capita One system is impacting on BAU within SENSTART and delaying project
tasks and milestones, as without these development revised pathways cannot be introduced.

Impact Score 4 Issue Status Open

Absolute Resolution Date 16/12/2022

Issue Owner Jai Ghai

Dependencies

ID 00001

Description of Dependency This project is wholly dependent upon the data/information capture of evidence to support the work
undertaken with CYP with SEND by a range of council services.

Mitigating Action Work is being undertaken within workstreams, alongside Insight and Performance, to ensure required
data/information is captured.

February 2022 Update
The Data Integrity Report published by Audit in 2019 will be reviewed by the Data and Reporting Task and
Finish Group to ensure all recommendations are captured within the project plan.

March 2022 Update
This dependency will be established following review of the data integrity audit.

May 2022 Update
Several of the recommendation of the audit have been delivered and data and reporting is improving
through actions being carried out by the Data and Reporting Task and Finish Group.

Impact Score 5 Dependency Status Managed

Target Resolution Date 23/12/2022

Dependency Owner Dharm Theora

Page 17



Report produced from Verto on 18/11/22 at 22:02 Page 1 of 1

ID 00003

Description of Dependency Capita One System version updates completion

Mitigating Action Timelines extended to allow for updates to be carried out by November 2022.

Impact Score 3 Dependency Status Escalated

Target Resolution Date 20/01/2023

Dependency Owner Nicola Harris

ID 00004

Description of Dependency Timely delivery of the ICMS Project

Mitigating Action Ensure links between projects are maintained

Impact Score 2 Dependency Status Managed

Target Resolution Date 31/03/2023

Dependency Owner Nicola Harris

Cashable Benefits

Benefit Number BEN.681.02

Description of the Benefit Improved High Needs Block budget forecasting to better control spend

Target Date for Achievement 31/08/2023 Anticipated Cashable Benefit (£k)

Benefit Owner Helen Bakewell

Non-Cashable Benefits

Benefit Number BEN.681.03

Description of Non-Cashable Benefit EHC HUB is replaced with a more streamlined, reliable system with improved processes and improved
accessibility.

Anticipated Benefit Delivery Date 31/08/2023

Benefit Owner Helen Bakewell

Benefit Number BEN.681.04

Description of Non-Cashable Benefit EHC HUB replacement solution provides improved analysis of demand and performance

Anticipated Benefit Delivery Date 31/08/2023

Benefit Owner James Amphlett

Benefit Number BEN.681.06

Description of Non-Cashable Benefit Removal of duplicated SEND processes to facilitate increased practitioner/client contact

Anticipated Benefit Delivery Date 31/08/2023

Benefit Owner Helen Bakewell

Benefit Number BEN.681.07

Description of Non-Cashable Benefit Development of a “Whole Family Approach” to sustain outcomes for the child and their family.

Anticipated Benefit Delivery Date 31/08/2023

Benefit Owner Helen Bakewell

Benefit Number BEN.681.09
Page 18



Report produced from Verto on 18/11/22 at 22:02 Page 1 of 1

Description of Non-Cashable Benefit Reduction in the number of children with SEND who are excluded from school.

Anticipated Benefit Delivery Date 31/08/2023

Benefit Owner Helen Bakewell

Benefit Number BEN.681.10

Description of Non-Cashable Benefit Allocation of SEN funding more closely aligned to individual learner needs thereby supporting inclusion and
changes in education settings.

Anticipated Benefit Delivery Date 31/08/2023

Benefit Owner Helen Bakewell

Benefit Number BEN.681.11

Description of Non-Cashable Benefit Closer monitoring of out of City placements.

Anticipated Benefit Delivery Date 31/08/2023

Benefit Owner Helen Bakewell

Approvals

Approver Name Brenda Wile

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



1
Written Statement of Action Update

November 2022

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 6



Key Issues raised in the SEND Local Area Ofsted report

1. Weaknesses in identifying SEND when difficulties emerge for those at primary and secondary 
school ages

2. The lack of accuracy in EHC plans and the delays in assessment, writing and review of those 
plans

3. The underdeveloped arrangements for jointly commissioning and providing thefo services that 
children and young people with SEND and their families need

4. Weaknesses in implementing strategically planned co-production at every level when 
evaluating provision; identifying strengths and weaknesses, and identifying and implementing 
improvements

5. Weaknesses in the planning and support of transitions both within statutory school age and 
from statutory school age to post-19 and post-25

6. Weaknesses in how the area shares information, including regarding support systems and the 
local offer.

P
age 22



Weaknesses in identifying SEND when difficulties emerge for those at 
primary and secondary school ages

What we have done

• Graduated Approach Guidance document finalized and launched with schools and services. Wider communications with health and 

social care partners ongoing

• Emotionally Based School Non-Attendance (EBSNA) pathway launched

• Central costed provision map tool finalized and launched

• Central ‘my SEN support plan’ template finalized and launched

• Training plan for SEND Champions in social care is in development with some content prepared ready for uploading onto portal. This 

has been shared internally for review and will be submitted to the Children’s Leadership Team for approval.

• SENCo Induction programme has been reviewed following pilot year. Revised model agreed and a launch event planned for November 

2022. 

• SENCo ‘Microsoft Teams’ area launched and there is already evidence of use for networking and information sharing. Formal feedback 

will be gathered next half term.

• Support for SENCos to categorise primary SEND needs accurately for census returns has been progressed with some further training 

planned.

• Information sharing for SENCos and education support services on SaLT offer and early intervention. 

• The National Autism Strategy has been adopted and a local statement has been developed. A meeting has been scheduled to progress

the pathway.

P
age 23



Weaknesses in identifying SEND when difficulties emerge for those at 
primary and secondary school ages

What we have done

• Work is continuing to reduce the ‘second wait’ for CAMHS and a trial project will be implemented within Wolverhampton on behalf of the 

Black Country.

• Additional resources have been allocated to Autism assessment in specialist CAMHS.

• Uptake of health passports continues to be a great success, which were launched in March 2022 jointly by V4P and RWT. Now being 

used to aid 'tell it once' for CYP/families 

• A Communication and Marketing Officer has been appointed to establish clear processes for signposting families to the Universal Offer, 
from 0-19 services including health, LA and community services, whilst children and young people are on an existing waiting list.  

• A clear process has been implemented to ensure that if CYPF are considered to be in need of further intervention within Specialist 

CAMHS, a regular contact routine is established, routine timescales being 12-weekly contact, and urgent being four-weekly. CAMHS

also ensure all families waiting are aware of how to contact the service to seek review, escalation and or advice.

• Scoping work is taking place across the Black Country to better understand the nature of the provision for Autism Diagnosis. 

• New DCSO commenced in post 30 August 2022.

P
age 24



Weaknesses in identifying SEND when difficulties emerge for those at 
primary and secondary school ages

What we will do next

• Development of parent guide to the Graduated Approach document.

• Develop process for the Graduated Approach to capture the impact from its use within schools.

• Launch guidance for SENCOs on categorising need for census returns and to support for early identification of language needs.

• Feedback on the progress of the autism diagnosis provision will be provided in November 2022.

• E - learning suite being developed with colleagues from education for all social care workforce.

• Work to be undertaken to commence development of a clear all age autism pathway.

P
age 25



The lack of accuracy and consistency in EHC plans and the delays in 
assessment, writing and review of plans

What we have done

• Annual review pathway process has been developed and shared with professionals and schools with ongoing training taking place this 

term. 

• 4 live training sessions have been delivered and one recorded training session.

• A dedicated SEND QA Advanced Practitioner is being recruited to develop a QA framework and schedule of audit activity across the

SEND Partnership.

• A digital EHCP Audit tool ‘Invision’ has been procured to assist quality assurance of EHCPs. A kick off meeting with Invision, to begin QA 

process using toolkit was held on 12 October 2022.

• Work is being undertaken with SENSTART, ICT Services, a Business Analyst and Capita to develop Capita One for EHC assessment 

and review processes.

• Health guidance completed for annual reviews/transition which will help support quality improvements regarding health advice.

• Commenced audits regarding health advice to improve QA 

• Development of an Aide-memoire/Tool kit for medical advice for Paediatricians

• Further scoping and signposting to CDC e-learning completed which will continue to aid understanding and the role of good health

advice in EHCPs. 

P
age 26



The lack of accuracy and consistency in EHC plans and the delays in 
assessment, writing and review of plans

What we plan to do next

• Quality assurance of new annual review reports from schools to monitor the impact. 

• Gain internal views from SEND officers on how the updated documentation is helping the process of amendments. 

• Developments to Capita One System to be carried out by end of November to support the EHC Assessment and Review Pathway.

• Procurement of Capita SEND portal to be undertaken and a review undertaken to establish how the portal will be used.

• Parent / carer and young people engagement to be undertaken to co-produce process/template to capture views within annual review

process.

• Timeless of EHCP/receipt of health advice for needs assessment with the 6 weeks reported monthly and inputted into the SEND data

dashboard 

P
age 27



The underdeveloped arrangements for jointly commissioning and providing
the services that CYP with SEND and their families need

What we have done

• A joint baseline assessment of current commissioned SEND services has been undertaken to identify opportunities for joint 

commissioning.

• Three rounds of meetings with providers have taken place to add provision to draft directory following quality assurance. 

• Review of Terms of Reference for Joint Strategic Commissioning Group has been carried out to improve quoracy requirements. 

• Quality Assurance standards have been re-drafted and shared for feedback.

• Public Health have met with the key stakeholders that can encourage take up of terrific for twos placements for children with SEND, 

locally to scope current position and make recommendations to increase uptake of placements. 

• An action plan has been formulated encourage take up of terrific for twos placements for children with SEND and agreed with partners 

through the Early Years Steering Group (subject to the support of parents/carers).

What we plan to do next

• Joint Commissioning tracker audit to be undertaken.

• Commissioning Team are holding further meetings with providers w/e 24/10/22 to carry out quality assurance and add to draft providers 

directory.

• Framework for QA of Alternative Provision to be shared at SPB in January 2023 for approval.

• Engagement and co-production work to take place with parents/carers to develop action plan to encourage take up of terrific for twos 

placements for children with SEND

P
age 28



Weaknesses in implementing strategically planned co-production at every level
when evaluating provision; identifying strengths and weaknesses and 

implementing improvements

What we have done

• Co-production and Youth Engagement Manager delivered training on co-production for SENCOs with Educational Psychology Service 

which will be shared wider through Statshelf.

• Voice 4 Parents evening focus group took place to update on the WSoAand to gain feedback on progress. Further session is scheduled 

for 8 November 2022.

• SEND Strategy Development session with V4P and council clarified the shared understanding of co-production/consultation and 

engagement.

• Training has been made available and is being delivered to organisations by the Co-Production and Youth Engagement Team

• HY5 have 13 members all with various SEND needs, with work being done with universal and specialist provisions to recruit members. 

• One of the HY5! members being recognisedat the Young Citizen of the Year Awards for the work she has done in raising the profile of 

HY5 and young people with disabilities in the city.

• #YES newsletter is sent out termly raising the profile of their work and to recruit members

• Recruitment of a participation officer to support embedding wider co-production with parents/carers has now been completed and they 

are just completing their induction and planning their engagement.

• Procurement of accessible communication tools to assist co-production. Widget has now been purchased and is accessible to all 

council employees on a 3-year contract.

P
age 29



Weaknesses in implementing strategically planned co-production at every level
when evaluating provision; identifying strengths and weaknesses and 

implementing improvements

What we have done

• A celebration of co-production is included within the SEND Partnership Board Communication Plan including recognition of individuals 

involved, in line with the national co-production week in June 2022

• Inspiring Change and Total Respect training has now been developed and was showcased at the Inclusion Conference on 17 October 

2022.

What we plan to do next

• A report is to be submitted to SEND Partnership Board following Using the Contact Quality Indicator Tool on Co-Production all partners 

have been asked to complete to highlight strengths and gaps and learn from each other good practice – a report planned to go to SEND 

partnership Board

• Co-production event to be planned

P
age 30



Weaknesses in the planning and support of transitions both within statutory
school age and from statutory school age to post-19 and post-25

What we have done

• A Universal Transfer Form has been shared with Secondary Heads and disseminated through schools. 

• Funding has been agreed for 2 SEND EET workers. 

• PfA careers fair has been planned, on 2 December 2022, to support all our young people with an EHCP from Year 9 upwards.

• An outline for the Transitions Pathway and Protocol has been developed, following the workshop held on 22 Sept which generated good 

discussions to develop sections relating to universal, targeted and specialist transitions.

• Findings of local review of practices in Children’s Social Care has been gathered and are to be shared with group.

• Dip sampling of health advice relating to PfA outcomes undertaken.

• The programme of practice visits, via the PAMHS Nursing team, is continuing with the current position showing that as at September 

57.3% of all individuals aged 14-25 have received an LD Annual Health Check in the past 12 months.

• HCP provision for children with SEND is due to be enhanced. 

• In School Nursing (5-19) there has been the addition of a Specialist School Nurse and 2x Public Health Associate Posts specifically to 

provide support for children with additional needs in mainstream schools. Posts have been recruited to and start mid-November.

• Guidance developed for health professionals to ensure that health can contribute to the TAC and PfA processes to support transition. 

• PfA pathway for EHCP outcomes has been drafted and is due to be shared with professionals.

• An annual review template (EHCP) has been developed for health professionals to support and improve contributions to annual and 
transition reviews of EHCP.

P
age 31



Weaknesses in the planning and support of transitions both within statutory
school age and from statutory school age to post-19 and post-25

What we have done

• ADHD Clinical Nurse specialist has commenced post at RWT and is working with the Trust Quality Improvement team and Voice 4 
Parents to develop the support needed for Children, young people and parents.

• Transition Clinical Nurse Specialist commenced in post at RWT in May 2022 working with children with complex needs and special 
schools. A transition panel which is held at least quarterly take places to coordinate the care of those with most complex health needs.

• Transition CNS has scoped the transition pathways within the Trust and attends the LA Transition/PfA workstream

• Special School Nursing have an action plan in place to support improvements around the annual health check work. 

What we plan to do next

• Complete PfA Audit following determination of best approach to engage with YP to complete relevant section.

• Explore links between recent published guidance around annual health checks and how this works in Wolverhampton and Transitions 

work.

• SEND Mainstream Nurse due to commence post during November 2022.

• SEND health visitor post appointed.

P
age 32



Weaknesses in how the area shares information, including regarding support 
systems and the local offer

What we have done

• Workshop was held on 13 September 2022, with all content owners invited, to map content required and develop their requirements for 

replacement website.

• Local Offer & Communication Officer has been appointed following second recruitment wave and is due to start in post during November 

2022, to drive forward, refresh and migration of the Local Offer.

• Support from the Design Team has been requested to work with parents and young people to get a feel of what the Local Offer means to 

them to develop the brand.

• A range of service across SEND were promoted during the Inclusion Summit on 17 October 2022 which was attended by senior leaders

and SENCOS from Wolverhampton Schools.

• SEND Newsletter published in October 2022 sharing information on the WSoAmonitoring visit in June 2022, launch of the Graduated 

Response and the revised EHCP Annual Review Pathway.

What we plan to do next

• Workshops to be held with Parent Carers on 8 November to develop requirements for Local Offer.

• Workshops to be arranged in November to develop requirements for Local Offer with young people.

P
age 33



Weaknesses in how the area shares information, including regarding support 
systems and the local offer

What we plan to do next

• Align development of leisure offer to work being undertaken on YO! Wolverhampton to widen offer available on site.

• Work to be undertaken with Design Team, young people and parent carers to develop Local Offer Branding.

• Work with Parent Carers and Young People to develop Local Offer logo and create mood board to develop branding for use on website 

and associated marketing material.P
age 34



Questions?P
age 35



T
his page is intentionally left blank



   

 

Sensitivity: PROTECT

                                                                                                                                                                   
Wolverhampton WSoA Review Meeting (MR3) 

 
Local Area: Wolverhampton 
Date: 7th, November  2022 
Venue: The Gem Centre, Wolverhampton  

 
Attendance: 
Sarah Baker  Voice 4 Parents  
Helen Bakewell  Head of Service SEND and Inclusion, CWC   
Emma Bennett  Executive Director of Families, CWC  
Emma Boyce  Designated Clinical Officer, Black Country ICB  
Nicola Harris  Project Manager, CWC  
Jayne Evans  Voice 4 Parents  
Cathy Higgins  Designated Medical Officer, Black Country ICB  
Katrina McCormick  Senior Programme Manager: SEND, Black Country ICB  
Kirsty Perry  Department of Education  
Pat Tate  Department of Education  
Deborah Ward  NHS England  
Brenda Wile  Deputy Director of Education, CWC  

  
Apologies:  
Sally Roberts  Chief Nursing Officer, Black Country ICB  
 
Actions from 4 month review  When 
DW agreed to link to Worcestershire Joint 
Commissioning Quality Assurance work.  

Action completed email sent 
17/06/2022). 

Share ISOS joint commissioning self evaluation  Action completed 28/06 
Invite PT/ DW to Inclusion Summit & Total Respect 
Training workshop 

PT attended 17/10 

Share PFA audit tool  Action completed 
 
General update on progress or areas of significant impact 
As before Wolverhampton have demonstrated that they have in place the effective 
governance, strategic leadership, partnership working and co-production to support the 
WSoA. A scrutiny sub group is now meeting with BW monthly. 
 
The area provided comprehensive information and links to evidence in preparation for the 
review meeting. They were able to do this because they are collecting and evaluating 
evidence as they go. The focus remains on driving the actions forward at pace while at the 
same time asking themselves “What is different ?” as a result.  
 
The SEND Adviser attended the Inclusion summit and had an opportunity to hear directly 
from young people, PCF and professionals of their experiences in Wolverhampton. 
This review will not detail all of the extensive information provided which can be found in 
the presentation. 

Page 37

Agenda Item 7



   

 

Sensitivity: PROTECT

Participation of young people is emerging as a strength, with young people recently 
developing a “young person friendly” accessible version of the WSOA. The voice of young 
people could be purposefully engaged in future commissioning activity. 
 
Progress on commissioning has been impacted by restructure delays and appointment of 
new team. Interim mitigations are in place. 

 
Support received in this reporting period 
 
WSoA area  General support for Head of Service 

Provider Support/Activity  
DfE Adviser 

Impact/Outcomes 
from the activity 

Reassurance of direction of travel and progress has led to 
increased confidence and activity. 

 
WSoA Actions/timescale check 
Are there any actions behind 
schedule? 

Yes 
Information below supplied by area 

Action Reason Mitigation/remedial action 
2.1 Full review of existing statutory 

assessment and review 
processes from receipt of 
request for assessment to 
cease to maintain. 
 
Leaving the EHC hub platform 
has delayed the assessment 
pathway until Spring 2023 as 
the team have had to focus on 
operational matters related to 
this.  
 
The interim solution of using 
Capita SEND systems following 
the cessation of the EHC hub 
has caused some challenges 
due to updates having to be 
implemented. 
 

Capita and the ICT Services are working 
collaboratively to develop the service 
processes which will mean all systems 
will be fully functioning by March 2023.   
 
The development of the Annual Review 
Pathway has been completed, has been 
made available and shared with schools 
in written format (from Sept 2022).  This 
will be updated on to the SEND Portal 
when the Capita System has been made 
available. 
 
Assessment work will continue to be 
developed to ensure they can both be 
aligned.  Manual processes are currently 
in use in the interim.   
 

2.2 Revised EHC plan being co-
produced, with advice providers, 
professionals, CYP and parent / 
carers. 
 
Some delay has been the result 
of staffing recruitment 
processes over the summer 
2022. 
 

EHCP draft template has been completed 
and circulated for views.  
 
 
 
Full staffing for SENDStart team in place 
from September 2022 

Page 38



   

 

Sensitivity: PROTECT

2.3 Implementation of evaluation 
process to assess parent/carers 
and young person satisfaction 
and to ensure that there is a 
feedback mechanism for 
comments related to the 
statutory process and the quality 
of plans.  

The new Team Leader with QA focus will 
have a central role in working with YP 
groups and parent/carer groups on the 
questions to be asked and this can be 
developed and shared by March 2023.  

2.5 Additional signposting to training 
on Council for Disabled Children 
(CDC) needs to be completed  

Extension of completion date to Jan 23 to 
allow additional implementation of e-
learning  

2.12 Practice week remains to be 
scheduled to audit EHCPs due 
to delayed recruitment of QA 
Officer. 

To be put in place following appointment 
of QA Officer which has been delayed 
from October 2022 to December 
2022/January 2023. 

3.1 Co-production of a Joint 
Commissioning Strategy 
between Local Authority and 
CCG, underpinned by a joint 
strategic commissioning action 
tracker acrossall of the joint 
strategic themes has been 
delayed due to the 
Commissioning Service 
restructure. 

The Joint Commissioning Strategy was 
published in March 2022 with an action 
plan developed. An Interim 
Commissioning Lead is now in place and 
is picking up this action. 

3.3 Due to the ongoing restructure 
of LA Commissioning Services 
resource has been limited to 
identify all budgets that are 
allocated to services that could 
be jointly commissioned. 
 

An Interim Commissioning Lead and 
Interim Commissioning Officer have been 
appointed and will continue with Joint 
Commissioning actions. 

5.3 Additional work to be completed 
on annual template which is to 
be included in health guidance 
around annual reviews and 
transitions  

Extension of completion date to Jan 23 to 
enable completion of annual review 
template for health professionals and 
further audit of PfA on health advice  

6.8 Capacity within V4P has 
delayed delivery of the POW! 
project to inspire a positive 
reframe in the discourse 
between professionals and the 
families of children with 
disabilities. 

Timeline has been extended, to March 
2023, to allow V4P appropriate time to 
completed editing on the videos and 
produce the relevant info leaflets. 

 
 
Progress on the WSoA Areas 
Area 1 
 

Weaknesses in identifying SEND when difficulties emerge for those at primary 
and secondary school ages 

Progress on key actions 

Page 39



   

 

Sensitivity: PROTECT

The area has been active across the partnership in progressing actions. Highlights 
include: 

• Graduated Approach Guidance document finalized and launched with schools and 
services along with the Emotionally Based School Non-Attendance (EBSNA) 
pathway. 

• Central costed provision map tool  and “My SEN support plan template finalized 
and launched 

• Support for SENCOs includes a revised induction programme, a “Teams’ area 
launched for networking and information sharing. Support on categorizing primary 
SEND needs accurately for census returns with further training planned on the 
SaLT offer and early intervention.  

• Training plan for SEND Champions in social care is in development with some 
content prepared ready for uploading onto portal. This has been shared internally 
for review and will be submitted to the Children’s Leadership Team for approval. 

• The National Autism Strategy has been adopted and a local statement has been 
developed. A meeting has been scheduled to progress the pathway. 

• Work is continuing to reduce the ‘second wait’ for CAMHS and a trial project will be 
implemented within Wolverhampton on behalf of the Black Country. 

• Additional resources have been allocated to Autism assessment in specialist 
CAMHS. 

• Uptake of health passports continues to roll out from the launch in March 2022 
jointly by V4P and RWT. Now being used to aid 'tell it once' for CYP/families  

• A health funded Communication and Marketing Officer has been appointed to 
establish clear processes for signposting families to the Universal Offer, from 0-19 
services including health, LA and community services, whilst children and young 
people are on an existing waiting list.   

• While a process of regular contact has been implemented for those awaiting  
CAMHS there is concern from PCF that this is not sufficient. This was agreed  to 
be followed up outside the meeting. 

• Scoping work is taking place across the Black Country to better understand the 
nature of the provision for Autism Diagnosis.  

• New DCSO commenced in post 30 August 2022. 
 
Evidence of impact 
The area are now collecting evidence of impact and planning to build on what they have in 
order to show the difference being made. Among this evidence are documents, feedback 
from users on the graduated response and of times when Graduated Approach web page 
is accessed by users. 
The SENCO Survey provides a baseline that will enable the area through further updates 
to measure the difference being made.  
A tangible difference is evidenced through the Census data for Wolverhampton schools 
compared to national data for last 2 years showing a reduction in MLD. 
Evidence included regarded SALT and Autism developments comprising plans, referral 
forms and commitments was useful to see as a foundation but does not comprise 
evidence of impact at this time. 
 
Key next steps 

• Development of parent guide to the Graduated Approach document. 

Page 40



   

 

Sensitivity: PROTECT

• Develop process for the Graduated Approach to capture the impact from its use 
within schools. 

• Launch guidance for SENCOs on categorising need for census returns and for 
support for early identification of language needs. 

• Feedback on the progress of the Autism diagnosis provision will be provided in 
November 2022. 

• E - learning suite being developed with colleagues from education for all social 
care workforce. 

• Work to be undertaken to commence development of a clear all age autism 
pathway. 

 
 
Area 2 
 

The lack of accuracy in EHC plans and the delays in assessment, writing and 
review of those plans 

 
The area reports the following progress on key actions 

• Annual review pathway process has been developed and shared with 
professionals and schools with ongoing training taking place this term.  

• Four live training sessions have been delivered and one recorded training session. 
• Two rounds of quality assurance have been completed. A digital EHCP Audit tool 

‘Invision’ has been procured to assist quality assurance of EHCPs. A kick off 
meeting with Invision, to begin QA process using toolkit was held on 12 October 
2022 with V4P involved. 

• Work is being undertaken with SENSTART, ICT Services, a Business Analyst and 
Capita to develop Capita One for EHC assessment and review processes. 

• Health guidance completed on SMART outcomes for annual reviews/transition 
which will help support quality improvements regarding health advice. 

• Commenced monthly audits regarding health advice to improve QA  
• Development of an Aide-memoire/Tool kit for medical advice for Paediatricians 
• Further scoping and signposting to CDC e-learning completed which will continue 

to aid understanding and the role of good health advice in EHCPs.  
 
Evidence of impact 
The area is at an early stage in implementing actions in this area and has provided 
evidence of actions taken. There is a framework in place to monitor impact through the 
completion of  annual review reports and providing feedback to schools. Collecting 
feedback from users would provide evidence of extent of impat and further pointers for 
developments.  
 
Key next steps 

• A dedicated SEND QA Advanced Practitioner is being recruited to develop a QA 
framework and schedule of audit activity across the SEND Partnership. 

• Quality assurance of new annual review reports from schools to monitor the impact 
and feedback from SEND officers on how the updated documentation is helping 
the process of amendments.  

• Developments to Capita One System to be carried out by end of November to 
support the EHC Assessment and Review Pathway. 

Page 41



   

 

Sensitivity: PROTECT

• Procurement of Capita SEND portal to be undertaken and a review undertaken to 
establish how the portal will be used. 

• Parent / carer and young people engagement to be undertaken to co-produce 
process/template to capture views within annual review process. 

• Timeliness of EHCP/receipt of health advice for needs assessment within the 6 
weeks reported monthly and inputted into the SEND data dashboard  

 
 
Area 3 
 

The underdeveloped arrangements for jointly commissioning and providing the 
services that children and young people with SEND and their families need 

Progress on key actions 
• A joint baseline assessment of current commissioned SEND services has been 

undertaken to identify opportunities for joint commissioning. 
• Three rounds of meetings with providers have taken place to add provision to draft 

directory.  
• Review of Terms of Reference for Joint Strategic Commissioning Group has been 

carried out to improve quoracy requirements.  
• Quality Assurance standards have been re-drafted and shared for feedback. 
• Public Health have met with the key stakeholders that can encourage take up of 

Terrific for Twos locally to scope current position and increase uptake of 
placements.  

• An action plan has been formulated encourage take up of terrific for twos 
placements for children with SEND and agreed with partners through the Early 
Years Steering Group (subject to the support of parents/carers). 

• The last two actions require a monitoring and evaluation framework to gather 
impact. 

Evidence of impact 
The area has provided evidence of the actions taken and the difference this is making 
such as a decision to cease using one provider. Also including scoping work and action 
plan to encourage take up of ‘Terrific for Twos’ placements for children with SEND. 
 
Key next steps 

• Joint Commissioning tracker audit to be undertaken. 
• Commissioning Team are holding further meetings with providers w/e 24/10/22 to 

carry out quality assurance and add to draft providers directory. 
• Framework for QA of Alternative Provision to be shared at SPB in January 2023 

for approval. 
• Engagement and co-production work to take place with parents/carers to develop 

action plan to encourage take up of Terrific for Twos placements for children with 
SEND 

• Possibly use ISOS joint commissioning self-evaluation tool for baselining and 
evidencing progress. 

 
 
 

Page 42



   

 

Sensitivity: PROTECT

Area 4 
 

Weaknesses in implementing strategically planned co-production at every level 
when evaluating provision, identifying strengths and weaknesses, and 
identifying and implementing improvements 
 

Progress on key actions 
• Co-production and Youth Engagement Manager delivered training on co-

production for SENCOs with Educational Psychology Service which will be shared 
wider through Statshelf. 

• Voice 4 Parents evening focus group took place to update on the WSoA and to 
gain feedback on progress. Further session is scheduled for 8 November 2022. 

• SEND Strategy Development session with V4P and council clarified the shared 
understanding of co-production/consultation and engagement. 

• Training has been made available and is being delivered to organisations by the 
Co-Production and Youth Engagement Team 

• HY5! have 13 members all with various SEND needs, with work being done with 
universal and specialist provisions to recruit members.  

• One of the HY5! members being recognised at the Young Citizen of the Year 
Awards for the work she has done in raising the profile of HY5! and young people 
with disabilities in the city. 

• #YES newsletter is sent out termly raising the profile of their work and to recruit 
members 

• Recruitment of a participation officer to support embedding wider co-production 
with parents/carers has now been completed and they are just completing their 
induction and planning their engagement. 

• Procurement of accessible communication tools to assist co-production. Widget 
has now been purchased and is accessible to all council employees on a 3-year 
contract. 

• A celebration of co-production is included within the SEND Partnership Board 
Communication Plan including recognition of individuals involved, in line with the 
national co-production week in June 2022 

• Inspiring Change and Total Respect training has now been developed and was 
showcased at the Inclusion Conference on 17 October 2022. 

 
Evidence of impact 
A number of practical packs, newsletters and session information was provided in the 
evidence. There is also an opportunity to develop a case study of the impact that HY5! 
and V4P are having at a strategic level and on operational practice. 
 
Key next steps 

• A report is to be submitted to SEND Partnership Board following Using the Contact 
Quality Indicator Tool on Co-Production that all partners have been asked to 
complete in order to highlight strengths, gaps and good practice – a report planned 
to go to SEND partnership Board 

• Co-production event to be planned involving participation officer, young people and 
V4P. 

 
 
Area 5 
 

Weaknesses in the planning and support of transitions both within statutory 
school age and from statutory school age to post-19 and post-25 

Page 43



   

 

Sensitivity: PROTECT

 
Progress on key actions reported by area: 

• A Universal Transfer Form has been shared with Secondary Heads and 
disseminated through schools with funding agreed for 2 SEND EET workers.  

• PfA careers fair planned, on 2 December 2022, to support all young people with an 
EHCP from Year 9 upwards. 

• An outline for the Transitions Pathway and Protocol has been developed, following 
the workshop held on 22 Sept which generated good discussions to develop 
sections relating to universal, targeted and specialist transitions. 

• Findings of local review of practices in Children’s Social Care have been gathered 
and are to be shared with group. 

• Dip sampling of health advice relating to PfA outcomes undertaken. 
• The programme of practice visits, via the PAMHS Nursing team, is continuing with 

the current position showing that as at September 57.3% of all individuals aged 14-
25 have received an LD Annual Health Check in the past 12 months. 

• In School Nursing (5-19) there has been the addition of a Specialist School Nurse 
and 2x Public Health Associate Posts specifically to provide support for children 
with additional needs in mainstream schools. Posts have been recruited to and 
start mid-November. 

• Guidance developed for health professionals to ensure that health can contribute 
to the TAC and PfA processes to support transition.  

• PfA pathway for EHCP outcomes has been drafted and is due to be shared with 
professionals. 

• An annual review template (EHCP) has been developed for health professionals to 
support and improve contributions to annual and transition reviews of EHCP. 

• ADHD Clinical Nurse specialist has commenced post at RWT and is working with 
the Trust Quality Improvement team and Voice 4 Parents to develop the support 
needed for children, young people and parents. 

• Transition Clinical Nurse Specialist commenced in post at RWT in May 2022 
working with children with complex needs and special schools. A transition panel 
which is held at least quarterly take places to coordinate the care of those with 
most complex health needs. 

• Transition CNS has scoped the transition pathways within the Trust and attends 
the LA Transition/PfA workstream 

• Special School Nursing have an action plan in place to support improvements 
around the annual health check work.  

 
Evidence of impact 
Evidence provided of action taken and the SEND dashboard shows an increase in LD 
Health checks. There will be an opportunity in 2023 to collect evidence of impact from 
professionals, children young people and families of their experience of transition following 
the actions taken above. 
 
Key next steps 

• Complete PfA Audit following determination of best approach to engage with YP to 
complete relevant section. 

• Explore links between recent published guidance around annual health checks and 
how this works in Wolverhampton and Transitions work. 

• SEND Mainstream Nurse due to commence post during November 2022.SEND 
health visitor post appointed. 

Page 44



   

 

Sensitivity: PROTECT

 
Area 6 
 

Weaknesses in how the area shares information, including regarding 
support systems and the local offer 

Progress on key actions 
• Workshop on 13 September 2022, with content owners mapped content required 

for replacement website. 

• Local Offer & Communication Officer has been appointed, due to start in post 
during November 2022, to drive forward, refresh and oversee the migration of the 
Local Offer. 

• A range of services across SEND were promoted during the Inclusion Summit on 
17 October 2022 which was attended by senior leaders and SENCOS from 
Wolverhampton Schools. 

• SEND Newsletter published in October 2022 sharing information on the WSoA 
monitoring visit in June 2022, launch of the Graduated Response and the revised 
EHCP Annual Review Pathway. 

Evidence of impact 
Evidence provided of activities undertaken plus positive feedback from the inclusion 
summit. 
 
Key next steps 

• Workshops to be held with parent carers and young people in November to 
develop requirements for Local Offer. 

• Align development of leisure offer to work being undertaken on YO! 
Wolverhampton to widen offer available on site. 

• Work to be undertaken with the Design Team, young people and parent carers to 
develop Local Offer branding and associated marketing material. 
 

 
Agreed actions/support following this meeting 
 
Action Who When 
Advisers offer to facilitate workstream leads session 
on evaluation. 

PT/HB TBA 

   
Date and venue of next meeting 
 

 
Conclusion and summary information 
There is considerable evidence of actions being taken to improve the areas of weakness 
identified by the inspection in 2021. New posts to strengthen capacity across the SEND 
partnership have been agreed and recruited to including the DSCO role, additional 
specialist nurses and participation officers with more planned. 
 

Page 45



   

 

Sensitivity: PROTECT

The area is working to establish a quality assurance framework across a number of areas 
of activity and is well placed to gather evidence of impact from an active PCF and HY5! 
PCF are reporting engagement in co-production and that their voice is heard, impact on 
the ground is yet to be evidenced consistently. V4P are about to rerun their annual survey 
with the inclusion of specific questions about the last six months. 
 
There are pressures across the SEND system and particularly with waiting lists for 
CAHMS. A conversation at the review meeting recognized the need to collectively look at 
solutions and responsibilities. There could be scope for joint commissioning activity on 
identifying gaps and co-designing services that both relieve pressure on specialist 
services and prevent needs escalating due to long waits. 
 
During the next four months and in preparation for the 12 month review the area should 
consider “What is different” as a result of the actions they have taken, continue to gather 
evidence from professionals, children, young people and families that will support position 
statements on the impact those actions and changes are having on their lived experience. 
 

Pat Tate & Debbie Ward 18/11/2022 

Page 46



Page 47

Agenda Item 8



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Notes of the Previous Meeting (27.9.22)
	4 Culture of Inclusion Update Report November 2022 - presentation
	5 Culture of Inclusion Highlight Report November 2022
	6 Written Statement of Action Update presentation - November 2022
	7 Wolverhampton  Adviser Monitoring Review
	8 Guidance - Area SEND inspections: framework and handbook

